MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE

HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, WALLFIELDS, HERTFORD ON

WEDNESDAY 12 OCTOBER 2011, AT 7.00

PM

PRESENT: Councillor W Ashley (Chairman).

Councillors M Alexander, D Andrews, S Bull,

A Burlton, Mrs R Cheswright, G Jones,

G Lawrence, M Newman, S Rutland-Barsby

and B Wrangles.

ALSO PRESENT:

Councillors J Mayes and P Ruffles.

OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE:

Liz Aston - Development

Control Team

Leader

Glyn Day - Principal Planning

Enforcement

Officer

Simon Drinkwater - Director of

Neighbourhood

Services

Peter Mannings - Democratic

Services Assistant

Alison Young - Development

Control Manager

362 <u>APOLOGIES</u>

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors J Demonti and J Taylor. It was noted that Councillor D Andrews was in attendance as substitute for Councillor Demonti.

363 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Chairman welcomed the press and public to the meeting and those who were watching the live webcast.

The Chairman reminded the Committee of the Members Code of Conduct Training due to be held at 5.15 pm in the Council Chamber prior to the 9 November 2011 meeting of the Committee.

The Vice-Chairman reminded Members of the special meeting of the Committee due to be held on Wednesday 26 October 2011 to determine the application in respect of the Benington Wind Turbine.

Members were advised that this meeting would be held in the Council Chamber, Wallfields, Hertford at 7.00 pm. The Committee agreed special arrangements for public speaking in that there would be 10 minutes available for the applicant and 10 minutes for the objectors. Councillor W Ashley left the room whilst this matter was determined.

364 <u>DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST</u>

Councillor S Bull declared a personal interest in the matters referred to under minute 383, in particularly the appeal decision in respect of application 3/10/2103/FP in that the appellant was Buntingford Town Council.

365 MINUTES

<u>RESOLVED</u> - that the Minutes of the Development Control Committee meeting held on 14 September 2011 be confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 366

3/11/0924/FP - ERECTION OF 25 RESIDENTIAL UNITS AND ASSOCIATED CAR PARKING ACCESS, AMENITY SPACE AND LANDSCAPING AT TOLLSWORTH WAY CARAVAN SITE, TOLLSWORTH WAY, PUCKERIDGE, SG11 1TL FOR RIALTO HOMES LTD

The Director of Neighbourhood Services recommended that, subject to the applicant or successor in title signing a legal agreement pursuant to S106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, in respect of application 3/11/0924/FP, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions now detailed.

Councillor G Jones expressed concerns that only 5 affordable housing units were proposed as part of this application. He also expressed concerns that the section 106 planning obligations were below the usual tariff for a scheme of this size.

Councillor Jones stated that he was unsure whether a scheme of this scale should proceed without the usual level of contributions. He stressed that although he could support the reduced affordable housing, he would prefer to see the full tariff for section 106 planning obligations.

Councillor A Burlton commented that he did not see why the Committee should accept a reduced level of Section 106 funding and affordable housing given that it was the Applicant's choice whether or not to develop this site.

The Director advised that Officers would always commence Section 106 negotiations on the basis of the full level of appropriate legal obligations. Members were advised that where the full level was not possible, Officers sought the opinion of an independent assessor to assess the applicants own viability report to determine what level of obligation was appropriate.

The Director stressed that this report indicated that a contribution in excess of £80,500 would not be financially

viable. Members were reminded that the Authority was obliged to provide a certain level of housing across the District. The Director referred to the need to bring sites forward for development whilst making the most efficient use of available land.

Councillor G Jones proposed and Councillor A Burlton seconded, a motion that the full tariff of Section 106 Planning Obligations be imposed for application 3/11/0924/FP.

After being put to the meeting and a vote taken, this motion was declared CARRIED.

The Committee accepted the recommendation of the Director of Neighbourhood Services that, subject to the applicant or successor in title signing a legal agreement for the full tariff of Section 106 Planning Obligations pursuant to S106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, application 3/11/0924/FP be granted subject to the conditions now detailed.

RESOLVED – that, subject to the applicant or successor in title signing a legal agreement for the full tariff of Section 106 Planning Obligations pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 in respect of application 3/11/0924/FP, planning permission be granted, subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

367 (A) 3/11/1365/FP AND (B) 3/11/1366/LB - CHANGE OF USE OF 3NO. BARNS TO B1 OFFICE USE, 2 NO. BARNS TO B8 STORAGE USE AND ERECTION OF NEW BUILDING FOR B1 OFFICE USE AT WIDBURY HILL FARM, WIDBURY HILL, WARE, SG12 7QE FOR MR N BUXTON

The Director of Neighbourhood Services recommended that, in respect of applications 3/11/1365/FP and 3/11/1366/LB, planning permission and listed building consent be granted subject to the conditions detailed in

the report now submitted.

Councillor B Wrangles commented that Hertfordshire Highways continued to question the viability of this site as a sustainable location for all modes of transport. She also stated that there was no footpath to and from the site, which was located on a dangerous road junction.

Councillor M Alexander expressed his surprise that there had been no late comments from Ware Town Council.

The Committee supported the recommendations of the Director of Neighbourhood Services as now submitted.

RESOLVED – that (A) in respect of application 3/11/1365/FP, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

(B) in respect of application 3/11/1366/LB, listed building consent be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

368 (A) 3/11/0987/FP - DEMOLITION OF EXISTING MAIN CAR DEALERSHIP AND CONSTRUCTION OF NEW MAIN CAR DEALERSHIP AND ADJACENT CAR PARK WITH RAISED STORAGE AREA; (B) 3/11/0988/FP - DEMOLITION OF BODYSHOP AND OUTBUILDING AND CONSTRUCTION OF 6 NO. OFFICES AND 5 NO. LIGHT INDUSTRIAL UNITS WITH TRADE COUNTERS AT 295-297, STANSTED ROAD, BISHOP'S STORTFORD, HERTS, CM23 2BT FOR GATES GROUP LTD

Mrs Cheryl Sauvery addressed the Committee in objection to the application.

The Director of Neighbourhood Services recommended that, in respect of application 3/11/0987/FP, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

The Director of Neighbourhood Services also recommended that, in respect of application 3/11/0988/FP, subject to the applicant entering into a legal obligation pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

The Director advised that the Environment Agency had provided further justification in respect of their request for a financial contribution towards ecological enhancement works to the Birchanger Brook, which was in close proximity to the site.

Members were advised that Officers were now satisfied that sufficient justification existed for the requested financial contribution of £10,000 towards off-site ecological enhancement works to the Birchanger Brook. Officers had therefore recommended that application 3/11/0988/FP be granted subject to the signing of a legal agreement pursuant to S106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

Councillor M Newman stated that although the gap between the car park and residents' rear gardens had been increased, it should be possible for a condition to be imposed requiring some level of screening beyond planting trees at ground level.

The Director confirmed additional screening could be added as a condition of planning permission. Members were reminded that any screening would increase the overall height of the proposed development.

Councillor A Burlton commented that some additional screening was essential given that any new trees would not provide sufficient screening for some considerable length of time after they were planted. He stressed that some other form of screen should be provided on the first floor of the car park.

Councillor M Alexander stated that any additional

screening would also help to absorb any sound that emanated from the site.

The Committee supported the recommendations of the Director of Neighbourhood Services as now submitted.

<u>RESOLVED</u> – that (A) in respect of application 3/11/0987/FP, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted and subject to the following additional condition:

 Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted details of screening to be erected on the first floor of the car park shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with those approved details.

Reason: In the interests of privacy in accordance with policy ENV1 of the East Herts Local Plan April 2007.

- (B) in respect of application 3/11/0988/FP, subject to the applicant entering into a legal obligation pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.
- 369 3/11/1339/FP SIDE EXTENSION TO AN EXISTING
 AGRICULTURAL BUILDING AT ALSWICK HALL, HARE
 STREET ROAD, BUNTINGFORD, SG9 0AA FOR ALSWICK
 HALL FARMS LTD

The Director of Neighbourhood Services recommended that, in respect of application 3/11/1339/FP, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

The Committee supported the recommendation of the Director of Neighbourhood Services as now submitted.

<u>RESOLVED</u> – that in respect of application 3/11/1339/FP, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

3/11/1282/FP - REPLACEMENT DWELLING WITH BASEMENT - AMENDMENT TO SCHEME APPROVED UNDER PLANNING REF. 3/07/1374/FP AT WOODLANDS, FRIARS ROAD, BRAUGHING, WARE, SG11 2NR FOR MR EDWARDS

The Director of Neighbourhood Services recommended that, in respect of application 3/11/1282/FP, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

Councillor A Burlton stated that the conclusion of the report could send out the wrong message that any development that was not visible would not result in harm to the character and appearance of a rural area.

Councillor Mrs R Cheswright expressed concerns in relation to the impacts of the proposed replacement dwelling with a basement in the rural area. She was also concerned that the site was untidy with spoil from building works around the site boundary.

The Committee supported the recommendation of the Director of Neighbourhood Services as now submitted.

RESOLVED – that in respect of application 3/11/1282/FP, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

3/11/1387/FP - EXTENSIONS TO BRICK BUILT 1960'S
BUILDING AND ERECTION OF NEW DWELLING TO REAR
WITH ASSOCIATED ACCESS AND LANDSCAPING AT
GREAT HORMEAD VILLAGE HALL, GREAT HORMEAD,
BUNTINGFORD, SG9 ONR FOR HORMEAD VILLAGE HALL
MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Mr Edward Keymer addressed the Committee in support of the application.

The Director of Neighbourhood Services recommended that, subject to the applicant or successor in title signing a legal agreement pursuant to S106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, in respect of application 3/11/1387/FP, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions now detailed.

Councillor Mrs R Cheswright expressed her satisfaction in relation to the Section 106 planning obligation detailed in the report now submitted. She referred to residents' concerns in relation to car parking and restricted fire service access.

After being put to the meeting and a vote taken, the Committee accepted the recommendation of the Director of Neighbourhood Services that, subject to the applicant or successor in title signing a legal agreement pursuant to S106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, application 3/11/1387/FP be granted subject to the conditions now detailed.

RESOLVED – that, subject to the applicant or successor in title signing a legal agreement pursuant to S106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, in respect of application 3/11/1387/FP, planning permission be granted, subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

3/11/1170/FP - REPLACEMENT DWELLING WITH BASEMENT AT EDGEWOOD FARM, BROXBOURNE COMMON, BROXBOURNE, EN10 7QS FOR MR D FELTHAM

The Director of Neighbourhood Services recommended that, in respect of application 3/11/1170/FP, planning permission be refused for the reasons now detailed.

Councillor M Alexander referred to paragraph 7.2 of the report now submitted. He stressed that Officers had been of the view that an internally accessed basement would be acceptable in this Green Belt location. He referred to the subsequent concerns of Officers in relation to the visual impact of the access being via a sunken patio.

Councillor Alexander questioned whether the proposed development would be visible from White Stubbs Bungalow. He stated that the development would not be visually intrusive and should be approved.

The Director advised that Officers had felt that the impact of the extensive excavations made for a greater visual impact on the Green Belt. Normally Officers were supportive of hidden basements without windows but in this case felt the impact was unacceptable in this location.

Councillor M Alexander proposed and Councillor B Wrangles seconded a motion that application 3/11/1170/FP be granted on the grounds that the application would not result in harm to the openness of the Green Belt and would not harm the character and appearance of the surrounding rural area.

After being put to the meeting and a vote taken, this motion was declared CARRIED.

The Committee rejected the recommendation of the Director of Neighbourhood Services that application 3/10/1170/FP be refused planning permission for the

reasons now detailed.

<u>RESOLVED</u> – that in respect of application 3/11/1170/FP, planning permission be granted subject to the following conditions:

1. The development to which this permission relates shall be begun within a period of three years commencing on the date of this notice.

Reason: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

2. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved plans 11-1067-101 D, 11-1067-102, 11-1067-103, 11-1067-104, 11-1067-105, 11-1067-106 A.

<u>Reason:</u> To ensure the development is carried out in accordance with the approved plans, drawings and specifications.

 No development shall take place until the applicant has secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological work in accordance with a written scheme of investigation which has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To secure the protection of and proper provision for any archaeological remains in accordance with policies BH2 and BH3 of the East Herts Local Plan Second Review April 2007.

4. No works or development shall take place until full details of both hard and soft landscape proposals have been submitted to

and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These details shall include, as appropriate: (a) Means of enclosure (b) Car parking layouts (c) Hard surfacing materials (d) Planting plans (e) Written specifications (including cultivation and other operations associated with plant and grass establishment) (f) Schedules of plants, noting species, planting sizes and proposed numbers/densities where appropriate.

Reason: To ensure the provision of amenity afforded by appropriate landscape design, in accordance with policy ENV2 of the East Herts Local Plan Second Review April 2007.

5. All hard and soft landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details and to a reasonable standard in accordance with the relevant recommendations of appropriate British Standards or other recognised Codes of Good Practice. The works shall be carried out prior to the occupation of any part of the development or in accordance with the timetable agreed with the Local Planning Authority. Any trees or plants that, within a period of five years after planting, are removed, die or become, in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority, seriously damaged or defective, shall be replaced as soon as is reasonably practicable with others of species. size and number as originally approved, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation.

Reason: To ensure the provision, establishment and maintenance of a reasonable standard of landscaping in accordance with the approved designs, in accordance with policy ENV2 of the East

Herts Local Plan Second Review April 2007.

6. Within 3 months of first occupation of the new dwelling hereby approved, the existing dwelling shall be demolished and all rubble and debris removed from the site. The land shall be re-landscaped in accordance with details pursuant to Conditions 4 and 5 of this permission.

Reason: The construction of a new dwelling would otherwise be inappropriate development in the Green Belt.

7. Prior to first occupation of the dwelling hereby permitted, the modified vehicular access shall be constructed to the specification of the Highway Authority and surfaced in bituminous or other similar durable material as may be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority for a distance of at least 6m into the site measured from the carriageway edge, and arrangements shall be made for surface water drainage from the site to be intercepted and disposed of separately so that it does not discharge into the highway.

<u>Reason:</u> To ensure that the access is satisfactorily constructed in the interests of highway safety and convenience.

8. Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 3 of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order, 1995, the enlargement, improvement or other alteration of any dwellinghouse as described in Schedule 2, Part 1, Class A of the Order shall not be undertaken without the prior written permission of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure the Local Planning

Authority retains control over any future development as specified in the condition in the interests of amenity and in accordance with policy ENV9 of the East Herts Local Plan Second Review April 2007.

9. Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 3 of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development Order), 1995 the provision within the curtilage of the dwelling of any building, enclosure or swimming pool as described in Schedule 2, Part 1, Class E of the Order shall not be undertaken without the prior written permission of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure the Local Planning Authority retains control over any future development as specified in the condition in the interests of amenity and in accordance with policy ENV9 of the East Herts Local Plan Second Review April 2007.

 The residential curtilage of the dwelling hereby approved shall be restricted to the area edged in red on drawing 11-1067-101 D.

<u>Reason:</u> For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the residential curtilage does not encroach into the Green Belt.

3/11/1369/FP - RE-DIVISION OF EXISTING DWELLING TO FORM 2NO. 2 BEDROOMED DWELLINGS WITH TWO STOREY SIDE AND REAR EXTENSIONS AND PORCHES TO FRONT AND ASSOCIATED PARKING PROVISION AT PRIMROSE COTTAGE, SLOUGH ROAD, ALLENS GREEN, SAWBRIDGEWORTH, HERTS, CM21 0LR FOR MR D SPINKS

The Director of Neighbourhood Services recommended that, in respect of application 3/11/1369/FP, planning

permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

The Committee supported the recommendation of the Director of Neighbourhood Services as now submitted.

<u>RESOLVED</u> – that in respect of application 3/11/1369/FP, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

3/11/1295/FP - SIDE AND REAR EXTENSIONS AND DEMOLITION OF EXISTING DETACHED GARAGE AT THE KENNELS, FANHAMS HALL ROAD, SG12 7QA FOR MR A SMITH

The Director of Neighbourhood Services recommended that, in respect of application 3/11/1295/FP, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

Councillor M Newman, as the local ward Member, referred to the building as unique and interesting in that it was a modern half timber construction. He stressed the importance of any development being in keeping with the existing structure.

Councillor Newman commented on whether Officers could add a condition in relation to material samples being provided to ensure the development remained in keeping with the existing structure. The Director confirmed that Officers could add such a condition should the application be approved.

In response to concerns from Councillor M Alexander, the Director advised that Officers valued the comments of Town and Parish Council's as much as Members do.

The Director confirmed that Officers always allowed ample time for comments to be submitted and Officers would talk to the Parish and Town Councils to request

that where there were no objections, Officers be advised of this rather than no comment being made.

The Committee supported the recommendation of the Director of Neighbourhood Services as now submitted.

RESOLVED – that in respect of application 3/11/1295/FP, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

3/11/1391/FP - DEMOLITION OF EXISTING DWELLING AND ERECTION OF DETACHED REPLACEMENT DWELLING WITH BASEMENT, GLAZED LINK, TRIPLE GARAGE AND COVERED SWIMMING POOL AT HEDGEGROVE FARM, PEMBRIDGE LANE, BRICKENDON, BROXBOURNE HERTS EN10 7QR FOR MR L WILLIAMSON

The Director of Neighbourhood Services recommended that, in respect of application 3/11/1391/FP, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

The Committee supported the recommendation of the Director of Neighbourhood Services as now submitted.

RESOLVED – that in respect of application 3/11/1391/FP, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted

3/11/0856/FP - ERECTION OF STORAGE BARN AT ELBOW LANE FARM, ELBOW LANE, HERTFORD HEATH, SG13
7QA FOR JAMES BOURKE OF LADKARN HOLDINGS
LIMITED

Mr Eamon Bourke addressed the Committee in support of the application.

The Director of Neighbourhood Services recommended that, in respect of application 3/11/0856/FP, planning

permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

In response to a query from Councillor M Alexander in respect of paragraph 3.2, the Director confirmed that no response had been received from National Grid's Plant Protection Team.

The Committee supported the recommendation of the Director of Neighbourhood Services as now submitted.

<u>RESOLVED</u> – that in respect of application 3/11/0856/FP, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

3/11/1230/FP - RAISE ROOF AND EAVES, NEW DORMER WINDOWS, FIRST FLOOR REAR EXTENSION AND FRONT CANOPY AT 19 GYPSY LANE, GREAT AMWELL, SG12 9RL FOR MR JOHN KESSLER

Mr Lawrence Tansley addressed the Committee in objection to the application. Mr John Reeves spoke for the application.

The Director of Neighbourhood Services recommended that, in respect of application 3/11/1230/FP, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

In response to a query from Councillor A Burlton, the Director confirmed that the number of bedrooms would increase from 3 to 5 as a result of the proposed development. Members were advised of an additional detached annexe on the site which contained further bedrooms.

The Committee supported the recommendation of the Director of Neighbourhood Services as now submitted.

RESOLVED - that in respect of application

3/11/1230/FP, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

3/11/1320/FP - TWO STOREY REAR EXTENSION, SINGLE STORY SIDE/REAR EXTENSION INCORPORATING A GARAGE, EXTENDED REAR PATIO AND RETAINING WALL AT 35 HIGH ROAD, WATERFORD, SG14 2PR FOR MR AND MRS STOCKER

The Director of Neighbourhood Services recommended that, in respect of application 3/11/1320/FP, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

The Committee supported the recommendation of the Director of Neighbourhood Services as now submitted.

<u>RESOLVED</u> – that in respect of application 3/11/1320/FP, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

3/11/1300/SV - REMOVAL OF AGRICULTURAL
OCCUPANCY RESTRICTION IMPOSED BY AGREEMENT
DATED 28TH NOVEMBER 1990 (3/90/0890/FO) MADE
PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS CONTAINED WITHIN
SECTION 106 OF THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING
ACT 1990 AT 1 ROSE COTTAGES, WYDDIAL,
BUNTINGFORD AND TRANSFERRED BY MEANS OF
UNILATERAL UNDERTAKING TO THE BUNGALOW,
STONEBURY FARM, HARE STREET, BUNTINGFORD FOR
MR RALPH SCOTT

The Director of Neighbourhood Services recommended that, subject to the applicant entering into an agreement under S106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 to restrict the occupancy of The Bungalow, Stonebury Farm, Hare Street, in respect of application 3/11/1300/SV, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions now detailed.

The Committee accepted the recommendation of the Director of Neighbourhood Services that, subject to the applicant entering into an agreement under S106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 to restrict the occupancy of The Bungalow, Stonebury Farm, Hare Street, application 3/11/1300/SV be granted subject to the conditions now detailed.

RESOLVED – that, subject to the applicant entering into an agreement under S106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 to restrict the occupancy of The Bungalow, Stonebury Farm, Hare Street, in respect of application 3/11/1300/FP, planning permission be granted, subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

3/11/1217/FP - SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION AND FIRST FLOOR REAR EXTENSION - AT CHRYSANTHEMUM COTTAGE, THORLEY LANE WEST, THORLEY, BISHOP'S STORTFORD, HERTS, CM23 4BN FOR MR AND MRS BOWLER

The Director of Neighbourhood Services recommended that, in respect of application 3/11/1217/FP, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

The Committee supported the recommendation of the Director of Neighbourhood Services as now submitted.

<u>RESOLVED</u> – that in respect of application 3/11/1217/FP, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

381 E/10/0083/B - THE UNAUTHORISED RESIDENTIAL USE OF AN AGRICULTURAL BUILDING AT SWALLOWFIELD FARM, CHURCH ROAD, EPPING GREEN, HERTS, SG13 8NB

The Director of Neighbourhood Services recommended that, in respect of the site relating to E/11/0083/B, enforcement action be authorised on the basis now detailed.

The Committee accepted the Director's recommendation for enforcement action to be authorised in respect of the site relating to E/11/0083/B on the basis now detailed.

RESOLVED – that in respect of E/11/0083/B, the Director of Neighbourhood Services, in conjunction with the Director of Internal Services, be authorised to take enforcement action under under Section 172 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and any such further steps as may be required to secure the cessation of the use of the agricultural building and land for residential purposes, as now submitted.

382 E/11/0077/B - THE UNAUTHORISED USE OF FORMER
AGRICULTURAL BUILDINGS FOR VARIOUS COMMERCIAL
USES AT POUND FARM, HOLLYBUSH LANE,
DATCHWORTH, HERTS, SG3 6RE

The Director of Neighbourhood Services recommended that, in respect of the site relating to E/11/0077/B, enforcement action be authorised on the basis now detailed.

The Director advised that it has been drawn to the attention of Officers that the site plan accompanying the enforcement report had inadvertently included part of an adjoining site. Officers had provided hard copies of a revised plan.

The Committee accepted the Director's recommendation

for enforcement action to be authorised in respect of the site relating to E/11/0077/B on the basis now detailed.

RESOLVED – that in respect of E/11/0077/B, the Director of Neighbourhood Services, in conjunction with the Director of Internal Services, be authorised to take enforcement action under Section 172 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and any such further steps as may be required to secure the cessation of unauthorised uses within various units/buildings, as now submitted.

383 ITEMS FOR REPORTING AND NOTING

RESOLVED – that the following reports be noted:

- (A) Appeals against refusal of planning permission / non determination;
- (B) Planning Appeals lodged;
- (C) Planning Appeals: Inquiry and Informal Hearing dates; and
- (D) Planning Statistics.

The meeting closed at 7.55 pm

Chairman	
Date	